
COUNCIL

28 September 2017

To: The Mayor and Members of
WOKING BOROUGH COUNCIL

SUMMONS TO A MEETING

You are hereby summoned to attend a SPECIAL 
MEETING of the COUNCIL to be held in the Council 
Chamber, Civic Offices, Gloucester Square, Woking on 
Thursday, the 28th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2017 at 7.00 
pm to transact the business specified in the agenda 
overleaf

RAY MORGAN
Chief Executive

Civic Offices,
Woking

NOTE:  Filming Council Meetings

Please note the meeting will be filmed and will be broadcast live and subsequently as an archive on the 
Council’s website (www.woking.gov.uk).  The images and sound recording will also be used for training 
purposes within the Council.  Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However by entering the 
meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed.

Public Document Pack



2

AGENDA
Prior to the commencement of business, Reverend Dr Daniel Newman, Associate Minister of St 
John’s Church, St John’s, Woking will say prayers.

1. MINUTES 
To approve the minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on 20 July 2017, as published.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 

3. MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS 

4. URGENT BUSINESS 
To consider any business which the Chairman rules may be dealt with under Section 
100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST. 
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary and other interests from Members and 
Officers in respect of any item to be considered at the meeting.

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, the Leader of the Council, Councillor D J 
Bittleston, Councillor Mrs B A Hunwicks, Councillor C S Kemp and Councillor J Kingsbury will 
declare a non-pecuniary interest in any items under which the Thameswey Group of 
Companies is discussed, arising from their positions as Directors of the Thameswey Group 
of Companies.  The interest is such that speaking and voting are permissible.

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, Councillor J Kingsbury will declare a 
non-pecuniary interest in any items under which the Victoria Square Development is 
discussed, arising from his position as a Director of Victoria Square Woking Limited.  The 
interest is such that speaking and voting are permissible.

In accordance with the Officer Procedure Rules, the Chief Executive, Ray Morgan, Deputy 
Chief Executive, Douglas Spinks, Strategic Director, Sue Barham, and Head of Democratic 
and Legal Services, Peter Bryant, will declare an interest in any items under which the 
Thameswey Group of Companies is discussed, arising from their positions as Directors of 
the Thameswey Group of Companies.  The interest is such that speaking is permissible.

In accordance with Officer Procedure Rules, the Chief Executive, Ray Morgan, will declare 
an interest in any items under which the Victoria Square Development is discussed, arising 
from his position as a Director of Victoria Square Woking Limited.  The interest is such that 
speaking is permissible.

In accordance with Officer Procedure Rules, the Deputy Chief Executive, Douglas Spinks, 
and Head of Democratic and Legal Services, Peter Bryant, will declare an interest in any 
items under which Brookwood Cemetery is discussed, arising from their positions as 
Directors of Woking Necropolis and Mausoleum Limited, Brookwood Park Limited and 
Brookwood Cemetery Limited.  The interest is such that speaking is permissible.



3

6. QUESTIONS. 
To deal with written questions submitted by Members under Standing Order 8.1.  Copies of 
the questions and of the draft replies (which are subject to amendment by the Leader of the 
Council) will be laid upon the table.

7. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016-17 

8. ELECTORAL INTEGRITY PILOTS 2018 - ID PROPOSALS 

9. RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE 
To receive and consider recommendations from the Executive.

10. NOTICES OF MOTION 
To deal with any motions received in accordance with Standing Order 5.0.  Any motions 
received before the deadline has passed for the receipt of motions will be published and a 
copy of the list will be tabled at the meeting.

11. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC. 
The Mayor will move, and the Deputy Mayor will second:-

"That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of item 15 in 
view of the nature of the proceedings that, if members of the press and public were present 
during this item, there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A, to the Local Government Act 1972.”

Paragraph 3 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information).

PART II – PRESS AND PUBLIC EXCLUDED

12. RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE 

AGENDA ENDS

Date Published - 20 September 2017

Note: At the close of the meeting the Worshipful the Mayor, Councillor G S Cundy, would like to 
invite the following to join him in the parlour:-

Councillors W P Forster (Deputy Mayor), M Ali, A Azad, A-M Barker, D J Bittleston, A J 
Boote, A C L Bowes, G G Chrystie, I Eastwood, K Howard, I Johnson, J Kingsbury, R 
Mohammed, M I Raja and C Rana together with Officers attending the meeting.





 

WBC17-026 
1 

Agenda Item No. 7 
 
COUNCIL - 28 SEPTEMBER 2017 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016-17 

Summary 

Before Council tonight is the Statement of Accounts for 2016-17 together with the external 
auditor’s ‘Report to those Charged with Governance (ISA 260) 2016-17’ and the Management 
Representation Letter, both of which will need to be taken into consideration in approving the 
Statement of Accounts. 

The ISA 260 Report and the Management Representation Letter will be considered by the 
Standards and Audit Committee on the 21 September 2017 in its role of overseeing governance 
and audit.  Draft minutes from the meeting of the Standards and Audit Committee will be 
available at the Council meeting and should be taken into consideration in approving the 
Statement of Accounts.   

The accounts for the 2016-17 financial year are presented for approval by the Council.  The ISA 
260 report is a good report and the auditor has indicated that they anticipate issuing an 
unqualified audit opinion by 30 September 2017 in accordance with the statutory timetable. 

In their report, the External Auditor draws attention to any matters of concern discovered during 
the audit, adjusted and unadjusted audit differences.  As a result of the audit work this year, the 
External Auditor raised 4 recommendations.  These related to controls and staff authorised to 
input journals, the timely processing of transactions and the planning which will be required to 
meet the new deadlines for the preparation and audit of accounts next year. 

The accounts of the Thameswey group of companies for the year ended 31 December 2016 
have been consolidated into the Council’s Statement of Accounts to present the Council’s full 
group accounts.  The Company accounts have been approved by the appropriate Boards of the 
companies.  

Following approval and receipt of the Audit opinion, the final Statement of Accounts together 
with associated documents will be published on the Council’s website.  

 

Reasons for Decision 

To approve the Statement of Accounts for 2016-17. 
 

Recommendations 

The Council is requested to: 

RESOLVE That the Statement of Accounts for 2016-17 be approved. 

 

The Council has authority to determine the recommendation above. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 7



Statement of Accounts 2016-17 

2 

Background Papers: 

None 
 
Sustainability Impact Assessment 
Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
Reporting Person: 

Leigh Clarke, Finance Director 
Ext. 3277, Email: Leigh.Clarke@woking.gov.uk 
 
Contact Person: 

Leigh Clarke, Finance Director 
Ext. 3277, Email: Leigh.Clarke@woking.gov.uk 
 
Portfolio Holder: 

Cllr Ayesha Azad 
E Mail: CllrAyesha.Azad@woking.gov.uk 

 
Date Published: 

20 September 2017 

 
REPORT ENDS 
 
WBC17-026 
 
 

 

Page 2



Statement of Accounts 2016-17 

3 

APPENDICES 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



 

 
4 

Equality Impact Assessment 

 
The purpose of this assessment is to improve the work of the Council by making sure that it does not discriminate against any individual or 
group and that, where possible, it promotes equality. The Council has a legal duty to comply with equalities legislation and this template 
enables you to consider the impact (positive or negative) a strategy, policy, project or service may have upon the protected groups.  

 

 

Positive impact? 

Negative 
impact? 

 
 
 

No 
specific 
impact 

What will the impact be? If the impact is negative how can 
it be mitigated? (action) 

THIS SECTION NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED AS EVIDENCE 
OF WHAT THE POSITIVE IMPACT IS OR WHAT ACTIONS 

ARE BEING TAKEN TO MITIGATE ANY NEGATIVE 
IMPACTS 

E
lim

in
a
te

 

d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 

G
o
o
d
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
 

Gender 
Men     X  

Women     X  

Gender Reassignment     X  

Race 

White     X  

Mixed/Multiple ethnic groups      X  

Asian/Asian British     X  

Black/African/Caribbean/ 
Black British 

    X  

Gypsies / travellers     X  

Other ethnic group     X  

 

P
age 4



 

5 

 

 

Positive impact? 

Negative 
impact? 

 
 
 

No 
specific 
impact 

What will the impact be? If the impact is negative how can 
it be mitigated? (action) 

THIS SECTION NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED AS EVIDENCE 
OF WHAT THE POSITIVE IMPACT IS OR WHAT ACTIONS 

ARE BEING TAKEN TO MITIGATE ANY NEGATIVE 
IMPACTS 

E
lim

in
a
te

 

d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 

G
o
o
d
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
 

Disability 

Physical     X  

Sensory     X  

Learning Difficulties     X  

Mental Health     X  

Sexual 
Orientation 

Lesbian, gay men, bisexual     X  

Age 
Older people (50+)     X  

Younger people (16 - 25)     X  

Religion or 
Belief  

Faith Groups     X  

Pregnancy & maternity   X  

Marriage & Civil Partnership   X  

Socio-economic Background   X  

 
The purpose of the Equality Impact Assessment is to improve the work of the Council by making sure it does not discriminate against any 
individual or group and that, where possible, it promotes equality. The assessment is quick and straightforward to undertake but it is an 
important step to make sure that individuals and teams think carefully about the likely impact of their work on people in Woking and take action 
to improve strategies, policies, services and projects, where appropriate.  Further details and guidance on completing the form are available. 

P
age 5

file://///wbc-fp-1/corp$/Shikari%20Supporting%20Documents/Impact%20Assessments/Master/Equality%20Impact%20Assessment%20Guidance.doc


 

6 

Sustainability Impact Assessment 
 
Officers preparing a committee report are required to complete a Sustainability Impact Assessment.  Sustainability is one of the Council’s 
‘cross-cutting themes’ and the Council has made a corporate commitment to address the social, economic and environmental effects of 
activities across Business Units. The purpose of this Impact Assessment is to record any positive or negative impacts this decision, project or 
programme is likely to have on each of the Council’s Sustainability Themes.  For assistance with completing the Impact Assessment, please 
refer to the instructions below.  Further details and guidance on completing the form are available. 
 
 

Theme (Potential impacts of the project) 
Positive 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

No specific 
impact 

What will the impact be?  If the impact is 
negative, how can it be mitigated? (action) 

Use of energy, water, minerals and materials   X  

Waste generation / sustainable waste management   X  

Pollution to air, land and water   X  

Factors that contribute to Climate Change   X  

Protection of and access to the natural environment   X  

Travel choices that do not rely on the car   X  

A strong, diverse and sustainable local economy   X  

Meet local needs locally   X  

Opportunities for education and information   X  

Provision of appropriate and sustainable housing   X  

Personal safety and reduced fear of crime   X  

Equality in health and good health   X  

Access to cultural and leisure facilities   X  

Social inclusion / engage and consult communities   X  

Equal opportunities for the whole community   X  

Contribute to Woking’s pride of place   X  

 

P
age 6

file://///wbc-fp-1/corp$/Shikari%20Supporting%20Documents/Sustainability%20Impact%20Assessments/Master/Sustainability%20Impact%20Assessment%20Guidance.doc


Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117





External Audit 
Report 2016/17

Woking Borough Council
—

September 2017

P
age 119



2

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Contacts in connection with 
this report are:

Neil Hewitson
Director, KPMG LLP (UK)
Tel: +44 (0)20 7311 1791
neil.hewitson@kpmg.co.uk

Arran Rose
Senior Manager, KPMG LLP 
(UK)
Tel: +44 (0)20 7311 2075 
arran.rose@kpmg.co.uk

arran.rose@kpmg.co.uk

Content

Page

Important notice 3

1. Summary 4

2. Financial statements audit 6

3. Value for money conclusion 17

Appendices

1 Recommendations raised

2 Materiality and reporting of audit differences

3 Audit differences

4 Audit independence

5 Audit quality framework 

19

This report is addressed to Woking Borough Council (the Authority) and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff 
acting in their individual capacities, or to third parties. PSAA issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies summarising where the 
responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is expected from audited bodies. We draw your attention to this document which is available on PSAA’s website 
(www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should 
contact Neil Hewitson, the engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead 
partner for all of KPMG’s work under our contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers (0207 694 8981, andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk). After this, if 
you are still dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 
020 7072 7445 or by writing to Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3H.

P
age 120



3

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

This report is presented in 
accordance with our PSAA 
engagement.  Circulation of this 
report is restricted.  The content 
of this report is based solely on 
the procedures necessary for 
our audit.  This report is 
addressed to Woking Borough 
Council (the Authority) and has 
been prepared for your use 
only. We accept no 
responsibility towards any 
member of staff acting on their 
own, or to any third parties. 
The National Audit Office (NAO) 
has issued a document entitled 
Code of Audit Practice (the 
Code).  This summarises where 
the responsibilities of auditors 
begin and end and what is 
expected from the Authority.  
External auditors do not act as 
a substitute for the Authority’s 
own responsibility for putting in 
place proper arrangements to 
ensure that public business is 
conducted in accordance with 
the law and proper standards, 
and that public money is 
safeguarded and properly 
accounted for, and used 
economically, efficiently and 
effectively.

Basis of preparation:  We have prepared this External Audit Report (Report) in accordance with our responsibilities under the National 
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and the terms of our Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) engagement.

Purpose of this report:  This Report is made to the Authority’s Standards and Audit Committee in order to communicate matters as 
required by International Audit Standards (ISAs) (UK and Ireland) and other matters coming to our attention during our audit work that we 
consider might be of interest and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone (beyond that which we may have as auditors) for this Report or for the opinions we have formed in respect of this Report. 

Limitations on work performed:  This Report is separate from our audit opinion and does not provide an additional opinion on the 
Authority’s financial statements nor does it add to or extend or alter our duties and responsibilities as auditors.  We have not designed or 
performed procedures outside those required of us as auditors for the purpose of identifying or communicating any of the matters covered 
by this Report.  The matters reported are based on the knowledge gained as a result of being your auditors. We have not verified the 
accuracy or completeness of any such information other than in connection with and to the extent required for the purposes of our audit.

Status of our audit:  Our audit is not yet complete and matters communicated in this Report may change pending signature of our audit 
report.  We will provide an oral update on the status of our audit at the Audit Committee meeting.  The following work is ongoing:

- Final review of annual report;

- Whole of Government Accounts submission;

- Final review of audit files.

Important notice

P
age 121



4

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section One

Summary

Financial statements audit – see section 2 for further details

Subject to all outstanding queries and procedures being satisfactorily resolved we intend to issue an unqualified audit opinion on the Authority’s financial statements for the 
deadline of 30 September 2017, following the Council approving the financial statements on 28 September 2017 and receipt of the management representations letter.  

We have completed our audit of the financial statements.  We have read the Narrative Report and reviewed the Annual Governance Statement (AGS).  Our key findings are:

• There are no unadjusted audit differences, and one adjusted audit difference explained in section 2 and appendix 3.

• We agreed presentational changes to the accounts with Finance, mainly related to compliance with the CIPFA / LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom 2016/17.

• We report here that your AGS complies with delivering Good Governance guidance issued by CIPFA / SOLACE in April 2016.

• We reviewed the narrative report and have no matters to raise with you.

• We did not receive any queries or objections from local electors this year.

We are now in the completion stage of the audit and anticipate issuing our completion certificate for 30 September 2017.

Value for money – see section 3 for further details

Based on the findings of our work, we have concluded that the Authority has adequate arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We therefore anticipate issuing an unqualified value for money conclusion for the deadline of 30 September 2017.

P
age 122



5

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section One

Summary

Other  matters

ISA 260 requires us to communicate to you by exception ‘audit matters of governance interest that arise from the audit of the financial statements’ which include:

• Significant difficulties encountered during the audit;

• Significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed, or subject to correspondence with management;

• Other matters, if arising from the audit that, in the auditor's professional judgment, are significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process; and

• Matters specifically required by other auditing standards to be communicated to those charged with governance (e.g. significant deficiencies in internal control; issues 
relating to fraud, compliance with laws and regulations, subsequent events, non disclosure, related party, public interest reporting, questions / objections, opening balances, 
etc.).

There are no matters which we wish to draw to your attention other than those highlighted in this report relating to the audit of the Authority’s 2016/17 financial statements.

We did not raise any recommendations in our 2015/16 ISA 260 report.  We have made four new recommendations as a result of our 2016/17 work.  The recommendations 
relate to journals, the timeliness of processing transactions into the Financial Information System and the closedown process. All recommendations are shown in appendix 1.

We undertake other grants and claims work for the Authority that does not fall under the PSAA arrangements. The status of our grants and claim work is summarised below:

• We will complete the certification of Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts in September 2017; and

• We will complete the certification of the Housing Benefits claim in September 2017.  

The fees for this work are explained in section two.

P
age 123



6

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

We audit your financial statements by undertaking the following:

We have completed the first six stages and report our key findings below:

Accounts production stage

Work Performed Before During After

1. Business understanding: review your operations   –

2. Controls: assess the control framework  – –

3. Prepared by client request (PBC): issue our prepared by client request  – –

4. Accounting standards: agree the impact of any new accounting standards   –

5. Accounts production: review the accounts production process   

6. Testing: test and confirm material or significant balances and disclosures –  

7. Representations and opinions: seek and provide representations before issuing our opinions   

Section Two

Financial statements audit

1.  Business 
understanding

In our 2016/17 audit plan we assessed your operations to identify significant issues that might have a financial statements consequence.  We confirmed this 
risk assessment as part of our audit work.  We provide an update on each of the risks identified later in this section.

2.  Assessment of 
the control 
environment

We assessed the effectiveness of your key financial system controls that prevent and detect material fraud and error.  We found that the financial controls 
on which we seek to place reliance are operating effectively.  We have made four recommendations which relate to journals, the timeliness of clearing 
reconciling items on the bank reconciliation and the closedown process.  We believe that these recommendations (see appendix 1) will strengthen your 
control environment.  We reviewed work undertaken by your internal auditors, in accordance with ISA 610 and used the findings to inform our work.  We 
have chosen not to place reliance on their work due to the approach we adopted for the financial statements audit.

3.  Prepared by
client request 
(PBC)

We produced the PBC to summarise the working papers and evidence we ask you to collate as part of the preparation of the financial statements.  We 
discussed and tailored our request with the Financial Services Manager and this was issued as a final document to the finance team. We are pleased to 
report that this has resulted in good-quality working papers with clear audit trails, although we note the provision of source documents in an editable format, 
such as the trial balance provided in excel, as well as a .pdf document would assist with the efficiency of the audit.

P
age 124



7

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section Two

Financial statements audit

4.  Accounting 
standards

We work with you to understand changes to accounting standards and other technical issues.  For 2016/17 these changes related to:

• Updates to the presentation of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movements in Reserves Statement and the 
introduction of the new Expenditure and Funding Analysis: this resulted in material changes year on year to the presentation of the financial 
statements. We have audited the presentation and content of the current and prior year restated disclosures, and are satisfied they are materially 
accurate; and

• Amended guidance on the Annual Governance Statement. We reviewed the Annual Governance Statement against the updated requirements in the 
CIPFA code and are satisfied the content is compliant.  

5.  Accounts 
Production

We received complete draft accounts by 30 June 2017 in accordance with the deadline. The accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial 
statement disclosures are in line with the requirements of the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.  We will 
debrief with Finance to share views on the final accounts audit which hopefully will lead to further efficiencies in the 2017/18 audit process. Although the 
accounts deadline has remained the same as in prior year, the finance team have moved many of their internal deadlines forward in order to prepare for 
the early close required for 2017/18. The Finance Team acknowledges that there is lots to be done to prepare for the earlier deadline next year, 
including bringing preparatory work forward, taking a different approach to non-material accounting issues, and considering the production of a period 9 
hard close account. 

We thank Finance for their cooperation throughout the visit which allowed the audit to progress and complete within the allocated timeframe. 

6. Testing We have summarised the findings from our testing of significant risks and areas of judgement in the financial statements on the following pages. We 
identified presentational changes to the accounts along with an audit adjustment to the Capital Grants Receipts in Advance balance in the Group 
Accounts (balance in 2016/17 £7,408k; adjustment required £-1,544k) which we have presented in appendix 2.

7.  Representations You are required to provide us with representations on specific matters such as your going concern assertion and whether the transactions in the 
accounts are legal and unaffected by fraud.  We provided a draft of this representation letter to the Finance Director on 22 August 2017.  We draw 
attention to the requirement in our representation letter for you to confirm to us that you have disclosed all relevant related parties to us.

P
age 125



8

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section Two

Financial statements audit

ISA 260 requires us to communicate to you by exception ‘audit matters of governance interest that arise from the audit of the financial statements’ which include:

— Significant difficulties encountered during the audit;

— Significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed, or subject to correspondence with Management;

— Other matters, if arising from the audit that, in the auditor's professional judgment, are significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process; and

— Matters specifically required by other auditing standards to be communicated to those charged with governance (e.g. significant deficiencies in internal control; issues relating 
to fraud, compliance with laws and regulations, subsequent events, non disclosure, related party, opening balances, public interest reporting, questions/objections, etc.).

There are no others matters which we wish to draw to your attention other than those highlighted in this report relating to the audit of the Authority’s 2016/17 financial 
statements. 

To ensure that we provide a comprehensive summary of our work, we have over the next pages set out:

• The results of the procedures we performed over: the Pension Liability; Restatement of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement, Expenditure and Funding 
Analysis, and Movement in Reserves statement; Valuation of Land and Buildings; Valuation and Consolidation of Subsidiaries.  These were identified as significant risks 
within our audit plan;

• The results of our procedures to review the required risks of the fraudulent risk of revenue recognition (which we have rebutted as part of our audit planning) and 
management override of control; and

• Our view of the level of prudence applied to key balances in the financial statements.  

P
age 126



9

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section Two

Financial statements audit

SIGNIFICANT 
audit risk

Account balances 
effected Summary of findings

Valuation and 
consolidation of 
subsidiary 
investments

Shareholdings in 
companies: 
£30,733k

(PY £22,726k)

Approach:

 We liaised with the subsidiary auditor and confirmed their professional qualifications, experience and independence;

 We reviewed the Authority’s impairment review;

 We compared the accounting between the subsidiary and the Authority accounts; and

 We tested the classification and accuracy of the investments in the Authority’s accounts, and reviewed the presentation of the 
consolidated Group accounts. 

In performing this testing we found that the Authority appoints an auditor of the Thameswey group with suitable qualifications, 
experience and independence.  The Authority carries out a regular review of Thameswey investments for any impairment indicators. 
We tested the adjustments posted as part of the consolidation process to align the accounting treatment of the Thameswey group 
and Authority accounts.  This found one error in the consolidation of Capital Grants Received in Advance – we have outlined this
audit adjustment in Appendix 3. We confirm here that management have corrected this error.  We found that the classification and
accuracy of investments recognised in the Authority accounts (2016/17 £30,733k) was materially correct and appropriately presented 
in the Group accounts. 

Restatement of 
Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement, 
Expenditure and 
Funding Analysis, 
and Movement in 
Reserves
Statement

Disclosure Approach:

 We assessed how the Authority actioned the revised disclosure requirements for the CIES, MiRS and the new EFA statement as 
required by the Code; and

 We checked the restated numbers and associated disclosures for accuracy, correct presentation and compliance with applicable 
Accounting Standards and Code guidance.

We performed audit testing on the restated figures.  This involved ensuring that the presentation of the notes was in line with the 
Authority’s internal reporting and monitoring structure.  We agreed prior year figures back to the audited 2015/16 accounts and 
gained an understanding of the adjustments that were posted in order to restate the prior year figures.  We ensured that the 
presentation of the new format notes was in line with the presentational requirements outlined in the CIPFA 2016/17 Code of 
Practice.  We did not identify any issues with the restatement.

P
age 127



10

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section Two

Financial statements audit

SIGNIFICANT 
audit risk

Account 
balances effected Summary of findings

Significant 
changes in the 
pension liability 
due to LGPS 
triennial valuation 

Pension Liability:
£62,021

(PY £50,725)

Approach: 

We have undertaken work on a test basis to agree the data provided to the actuary back to the systems and reports from which it was 
derived and to understand the controls in place to ensure the accuracy of this data.  This included checking data provided to the 
actuary back to underlying payslips.  We performed an evaluation of the actuary’s expertise using our own KPMG specialists.  We 
performed benchmarking of the assumptions used in the valuation against KPMG benchmarks and against those used by other Surrey 
District Councils.  Finally we ensured that numbers included in the actuary’s report had been correctly reflected in the Authority’s 
financial statements. 

No issues were identified as part of the testing of the pension scheme balances. 

Valuation of land 
and buildings

Property, Plant 
and Equipment:

£469,984k

(PY £432,739k)

Approach : 

We have undertaken an assessment of the expertise of the Authority's valuers, Wilks Head and Eve (WHE) and Frazers.  This involved 
confirmation of their professional experience, qualifications and independence.  For this we used our own KPMG specialist to evaluate 
the work of WHE and Frazers.

We reviewed the instructions provided by the Authority to WHE and Frazers to confirm they are complete and accurate, i.e. that they 
include the Authority’s full estate and are appropriate for the purposes of the valuation.  We checked that the instructions are in line 
with the Code.

We reviewed the valuation provided by the valuers and assessed whether it has been reflected accurately in the Fixed Assets Register 
and in the financial statements, and considered the accuracy of information provided by the Authority to the valuers.

We reviewed the revaluation basis and were satisfied the approach was appropriate.  In doing so we have drawn on national 
benchmarks outlined in the Gerald Eve report, which provides an overview of national property market performance.  We engaged our 
property team experts to undertake an assessment of the revaluation.

We tested the floor space inputs into the valuations (combination of Gross Internal Area, Net Internal Area and Site Area depending on 
the operational use of the asset).  This included ensuring that information supplied by the Authority to WHE had been used correctly in 
the valuations.  We tested the accuracy of information by re-performing a sample of area calculations.  We found no issues with the 
completeness and accuracy of the internal area data supplied to the valuer. 

We have undertaken appropriate work to understand the basis upon which any impairments to land and buildings have been 
calculated, and have tested associated assumptions. Impairments in 2016/17 were £11,182k for Other Land and Buildings and 
£12,751k for Investment Property. The approach was considered to be reasonable by our valuation specialist.

P
age 128



11

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section Two

Financial statements audit

Other areas of audit focus

We identified 6 other areas of audit focus.  These are not considered to be significant risks as they are less likely to give rise to a material error.  Nonetheless these are areas of 
importance where we carry out audit procedures to ensure that there is no material misstatement.

Other areas Account balances 
effected Summary of findings

Cash Cash: £10,100k

(PY £10,000k)

We reviewed bank confirmations and reconciliations to ensure that internal controls are operating effectively and that the year end cash 
balance is accurate.  We have raised a low priority recommendation in relation to timely clearance of items from the bank reconciliation.

Payroll Payroll: £10,600k

(PY £10,300k)

We reviewed the approach and tested the systems and specific transactions to ensure completeness, existence and accuracy of the 
payroll balance. We formed our own expectation of payroll costs for the year, disaggregated across different grades of employees.  We 
did not identify any issues with the payroll balance.

Business 
rates and 
council tax

Business rates and 
council tax: £117,000k

(PY £109,000k)

We tested the completeness, accuracy and existence of these revenue sources through testing the calculations, agreeing a sample to 
supporting evidence and to the prior year and comparable benchmarks.  No issues found with the recognition and recording of 
business rates and council tax.

HRA rental
income

HRA gross rental 
income: £18,971k

(PY £19,022k)

We tested the accuracy of income and expenditure through testing a sample to supporting evidence. We gained assurance of the 
completeness of income and expenditure through cut off testing procedures.  No issues identified.  

Housing 
benefits

Housing benefits: 
£29,335k

(PY £29,387k)

We reviewed the processes to ensure that appropriate controls are in place.  We selected a sample of housing benefit claims and 
payments and agreed these to supporting documentation.  No issues identified.  

Grant 
income

Capital grants received: 
£16,350

(PY £3,400k)

We reviewed the processes over the different grants to ensure that they are accurately recorded. We selected a sample and tested 
back to underlying evidence to ensure that grants have been recognised correctly and that the Authority has the right to receive the 
grant.  No issues identified.  

P
age 129



12

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section Two

Financial statements audit

Risks that ISAs 
require us to 
assess in all cases

Why Our findings from the audit

Fraud risk from 
revenue recognition

Professional standards require us to make a rebuttable presumption that the fraud risk from revenue 
recognition is a significant risk.

In our External Audit Plan 2016/17 we reported that we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Local 
Authorities as there is unlikely to be an incentive to fraudulently recognise revenue.

We have not conducted any specific 
procedures in relation to the risk of fraud 
in recognition, as we have rebutted this 
risk as part of our audit plan.  

Fraud risk from 
management 
override of controls

Management is typically in a powerful position to perpetrate fraud owing to its ability to manipulate 
accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear 
to be operating effectively.  Our audit methodology incorporates the risk of management override as a default 
significant risk. 

In line with our methodology, we carry out appropriate controls testing and substantive procedures, including 
over journal entries, accounting estimates and significant transactions that are outside the normal course of 
business, or are otherwise unusual.

We have not identified any specific additional risks of management override relating to this audit.  

There are no matters arising from this 
work that we need to bring to your 
attention.  

P
age 130



13

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Judgements in your financial statements

We consider the level of prudence in key judgements in your financial statements. We summarise our view below using the following scale:

Section Two

Financial statements audit

Level of prudence

Cautious OptimisticBalancedAudit difference Audit difference

Acceptable range



Assessment of subjective areas

Asset / liability class Current 
year

Prior 
year

Balance 
(£m) KPMG comment

Provisions, including NDR 
provision

  £1.4m

(PY:£2.5m) 

In 2013/14, changes to the local authority funding arrangements meant that the Authority is now responsible for 
a proportion of successful rateable value appeals.  The Authority has provided for a fixed percentage of 
outstanding appeals in accounting for the potential liability, based on historical appeals success rates.  We 
have tested this and found that the Authority have made appropriate judgements in deriving and assessing the 
appeals percentage. We conclude this is a balanced judgement

Accruals de minimis level   £1,000*

(PY: £500)

The Authority has increased its de minimis accruals level in response to the shorter closedown period.  We 
have been actively engaging with Management to understand the impact of this.  Whilst not a material change, 
in light of it, the Authority should consider its financial reporting process throughout the year. The £1,000 limit is 
sensible for an organisation the size of Woking, and in line with what we see at other councils. We therefore 
conclude this is a balanced judgement

* note these values are whole pounds, not millions.

Accruals and sundry
creditors

  £12.7m 

(PY £10.1m)

We performed substantive testing over a sample of accruals.  For each accrual we found that there was 
sufficient appropriate evidence to justify the accrued amount.  Where possible we matched the accrual to the 
actual amount paid and found it to have been estimated reliably.  The movement in accruals is mainly 
attributable to a reduction in income received in advance and sundry deposits.

P
age 131



14

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section Two

Financial statements audit
Assessment of subjective areas

Asset / liability class Current 
year

Prior 
year

Balance 
(£m) KPMG comment

PPE: HRA assets   £294m

PY:£277m 

The Authority continues its use of the beacon methodology in line with the DCLG’s Stock Valuation for Resource 
Accounting published in November 2016.  Beacon properties have been valued by Frazers chartered surveyors.  The 
resulting increase of 6% is in line with regional indices provided by Gerald Eve, the valuation firm engaged by the 
NAO to provide supporting valuation information. Based on our assessment of these assumptions, we have 
concluded this is a balanced judgement.

PPE: Impairments   £23.9m

PY: £12.8m

There was an increase in the value of impairments recognised in 2016/17.  The main contributors to the impairment 
were falls in value of the Hoe Valley Community Buildings and Wolsey Place Shopping Centre.  The impairment to 
the Hoe Valley Community Buildings resulted from a change in the way they are valued – whilst under construction 
they were valued at the cost to construct the assets (£8.7m). However, following construction, they are valued based 
on the rental value of the leases. As this is a community asset, these rental yields are low, resulting in revised 
valuation of £87,500.  The second contributor to the impairment was a fall in value of the Wolsey Place Shopping 
Centre.  This is due to some parts of the building being closed and tenants being relocated as a result of the Victora
Square redevelopment. This led to an impairment of £12.3m.  

We have assessed the valuations prepared by Wilks Head and Eve using our own valuation specialist. Our 
assessment is that WHE have used prudent assumptions about property prices and rental yields, which are tailored 
appropriately for the Surrey area.  We therefore conclude that this is a balanced estimate. 

Bad debt provision   £2.9m

PY: £3.7m

The provision for bad debts fell by £0.8m in 2016/17.  This was due to a higher number of sundry creditors being 
collected prior to year end.  In addition there was a significant debt write off in year, which has resulted in a lower 
provision being required. The Authority has analysed the aging of its debtors, and compared it to historic debt 
collection rates. The provision is a reasonable reflection of these historic rates, so we have concluded it is a balanced 
estimate.

Pension liability   £62m

PY:£50m

The year on year increase is due to the triennial valuation of the scheme.  We performed detailed audit procedures 
over the pension liability.  This included agreeing the amounts disclosed back to the actuary's report, substantively 
testing the information provided to the actuary, and performing a review of the key assumptions that affect the 
balance.  In addition, we reviewed the PWC report of the Local Government Pension Scheme, and communicated 
with Grant Thornton, the auditors responsible for the Surrey Pension Scheme.  We found that the assumptions were 
reasonable and the underlying data was accurate.  We found that the assumptions applied by the Authority were in 
line with other Surrey Authorities, and with our own internal benchmarks.  We have therefore concluded this is a 
balanced assumption.

P
age 132



15

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Group audit

We liaised with the subsidiary auditor, Hamlyns, and confirmed their professional qualifications, experience and independence. No issues were identified from this work.  We 
reviewed the Authority’s impairment review, which did not identify any issues.  We compared the accounting between the subsidiary and the Authority accounts, which did not 
identify any issues. We liaised with Hamlyns to confirm whether the accounts of the Thameswey Ltd were materially accurate, Hamlyns confirmed their accuracy. 

One corrected adjustment relating to Capital Grants Receipts in Advance, adjustment required £1,544k (see appendix 3) resulted from our audit of the Group.  No other issues 
were noted.

Narrative report of the Authority 

We reviewed the Authority’s narrative report and have confirmed that it is consistent with the financial statements and our understanding of the Authority.  

Queries from local electors

We did not receive any questions or objections from members of the public this year. 

Audit certificate

We have completed all our responsibilities in relation to the audit of the accounts for the year end 31 March 2017 and anticipate issuing our audit certificate with our audit 
opinion. 

Section Two

Financial statements audit

P
age 133



16

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) 

We are in the process of reviewing your WGA consolidation pack. 

Other grants and claims work

We undertake other grants and claims work for the Authority that does not fall under the PSAA arrangements.  The status of our grants and claim work is presented below:

• We will complete the certification of Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts in September 2017; and

• We will complete the certification of the Housing Benefits claim in September 2017.

Audit fees

Our fee for the audit was £54,702 excluding VAT (£54,702 excluding VAT in 2015/16).  This fee was in line with that highlighted in our audit plan approved by the Standards and 
Audit Committee on 9 March 2017.

Our work on the certification of Housing Benefits (BEN01) is  planned for September 2017.  The planned scale fee for this is £7,208 excluding VAT (£7,208 excluding VAT in 
2015/16).  The planned fee for Capital Pooling which does not fall under the PSAA arrangements is £3,000 excluding VAT (£3,000 excluding VAT in 2015/16).

We have completed non-audit work at the Authority in 2016/17 delivering a high level tax awareness session to Mole Valley District Council, with Woking Borough Council in 
attendance, and have included in appendix 4 confirmation of the safeguards that have been put in place to preserve our independence.  

Section Two

Financial statements audit

P
age 134



17

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Our VFM work follows NAO guidance.  It is risk based and our approach is summarised below.  We identified one significant VFM risk which is reported below.  We are satisfied 
that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2017, based upon the 
criteria of informed decision making, sustainable resource deployment and working with partners and third parties.

Significant risk based VFM audit work

Below we set out the detailed findings of our significant risk based VFM work. This work was completed to address the residual risks remaining after our assessment of the 
higher level controls in place to address the VFM risks identified in our planning and financial statements audit work.

Section Three

Value for money

Continually re-assess potential VFM risks

VFM audit risk 
assessment

Financial statements 
and other audit work

Identification of 
significant VFM 

risks (if any)
Conclude on 

arrangements to 
secure VFM

No further work required

Assessment of work by other 
review agencies

Specific local risk based work

VFM
 conclusion

Significant VFM risk Why this is significant Our audit response and findings

Financial resilience These is increased 
pressure on authorities to 
deliver services with 
reduced budgets.  In 
2016/17, Woking Borough 
Council has undertaken 
significant infrastructure 
projects and increased 
borrowing. 

We assessed whether the Authority has robust systems and processes to effectively manage financial risks and 
opportunities and to secure a stable financial position that enables it to operate for the foreseeable future.  We did this by 
reviewing the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for 2016/17 to 2021/22 and by reviewing relevant minutes from 
Council meetings to support our understanding of processes followed in setting the MTFS.

We reviewed the budget process and assumptions included such as savings estimates. We also reviewed related 
support and evidence of challenge. In particular, the MTFS states that the Authority must find £7.5m of savings over the 
5 years to 2022. We enquired with the managers of each of the main departments about the assumptions underpinning 
the MTFS, and they felt the assumptions were reasonable based on past performance. In 2016/17 there was an 
underspend of £981k, with a forecast underspend in 2017/18 of £296k.

P
age 135



18

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section Three

Value for money

Our audit response and findings (continued…)

We performed an analysis of historic borrowing rates, and comparison with reserves.  This included an analysis of where the majority of savings have come from and met with 
key managers to discuss the assumptions underpinning the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Long term borrowings have been increasing significantly: up from £333m in 12/13 to £518m in 16/17, an increase of 55%. The Council borrows in order to fund purchases of 
property, build and do major works to community facilities, or to acquire strategic assets to help with the aim of regeneration. With current property rises outpacing the interest 
rates on the PWLB loans, this is a sensible investment strategy. In addition, over this period the Council has grown its usable reserves from £53m in 13/14 to £84m in 16/17.  
Usable reserves as a percentage of borrowing has remained fairly static at between 14%-16% across the period.  This suggests the Council is actively managing its reserves 
to ensure that they are kept at an appropriate level relative to borrowing commitments. 

Overall we have not identified any significant concerns with the financial resilience of the Authority that would impact on our value for money conclusion.

13%

14%

14%

15%

15%

16%

16%

17%

17%

 -

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£’
00

0

Historic Borrowing Rates

Long term
borrowing

Long term
investments in
Group Companies

Usable reserves as
Percentage of Total
Borrowing

P
age 136



19

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Recommendations raised as a result of our work in the current year are as follows:

Appendix 1

Recommendations raised

Priority rating for recommendations

 Priority one: issues that are fundamental and 
material to your system of internal control. We 
believe that these issues might mean that you 
do not meet a system objective or reduce 
(mitigate) a risk.

 Priority two: issues that have an important 
effect on internal controls but do not need 
immediate action. You may still meet a system 
objective in full or in part or reduce (mitigate) a 
risk adequately but the weakness remains in 
the system. 

 Priority three: issues that would, if corrected, 
improve the internal control in general but are 
not vital to the overall system. These are 
generally issues of best practice that we feel 
would benefit you if you introduced them.

# Risk Recommendation Management Response / Officer / Due Date

1  Journal controls

The Authority does not have a number of the controls we expect to see embedded into the journals 
process. We have provided management with a ‘best practice’ summary of the typical journal controls 
used by other organisations.

Whilst we are satisfied that there are mitigating controls in place that could detect a material 
misstatement in the financial statements, in light of the faster close timetable next year and current good 
practice, the Authority should consider how it could improve the efficiency and effectiveness of its 
journals control environment (our best practice list of controls has been shared with management).

Agreed 
Access to journals is restricted to members of the 
Finance Team which minimises the risk of inappropriate 
journal entry. Mitigating controls are in place to identify 
errors. A management control report will be generated 
to identify back-posted journals.
Financial Services Manager
December 2017

2  Journals authorisation

One member of staff remained on the journals authorisation list when they should have been removed. 
This was due to the member of staff being temporarily seconded to the finance team to assist with a busy 
period. They were correctly given journals privileges, but these were not removed when that person left 
the team. We reviewed the journals list and found that no journals had been posted by that person in 
2016/17, and they have now been removed from the approved list. 

We recommend that management frequently review the access rights for posting journals.

Agreed

A management report of staff with access to journals will 
be reviewed quarterly.

Financial Services Manager, December 2017

P
age 137



20

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendix 1

Recommendations raised

# Risk Recommendation Management Response / Officer / Due Date

3  Faster close preparations

In preparation for the mandatory faster close timetable for 2017/18 onwards, Finance could benefit 
from ensuring that the accounts timetable has sufficient time set aside for preparing and quality 
assuring its draft accounts and supporting working papers. This should help to ensure that the tighter 
deadlines are met next year. A detailed 2016/17 debrief should take place internally to identify lessons 
leant and potential efficiencies for next year’s process, which we would be happy to take part in.  

Agreed

The Finance Team will work with KPMG to prepare for 
next year’s process.

4  Timeliness of processing transactions into the Financial Information System

A CHAPS payment was not input into Integra pending a decision on its accounting treatment. This was 
picked up and reported in the bank reconciliation process in a timely manner and highlighted as 
unreconciled item. Reconciling items could be removed more quickly from the bank reconciliation if 
discussions about accounting treatment of unusual transactions could take place within a 30 day 
period. This will may also facilitate early closedown.

Agreed.

A 30 day period will be adopted as a target for 
processing transactions onto the financial information 
system.

P
age 138



21

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgment and includes consideration of three aspects: 

• Material errors by value are those which are simply of significant numerical size to distort the reader’s perception of the financial statements. Our assessment of the 
threshold for this depends upon the size of key figures in the financial statements, as well as other factors such as the level of public interest in the financial statements;

• Errors which are material by nature may not be large in value, but may concern accounting disclosures of key importance and sensitivity, for example the salaries of senior 
staff; and

• Errors that are material by context are those that would alter key figures in the financial statements from one result to another – for example, errors that change successful 
performance against a target to failure.

We used the same planning materiality reported in our External Audit Plan 2016/17, presented on 9 March 2017

Materiality for the Authority’s accounts was set at £1.8 million for the Group accounts and £1.7 million for the Authority accounts. This equates to around 1.9% of gross 
expenditure. 

We design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of precision.

Reporting to Standards and Audit Committee  

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the 
Standards and Audit Committee any misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are identified by our audit work.  Under ISA 260, we are obliged to report 
omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly 
inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria.  ISA 450 requires us to request that uncorrected 
misstatements are corrected.  

In the context of the Authority, we propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £85,000 for the Authority

Where management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the 
Standards and Audit Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Appendix 2

Materiality and reporting of audit differences 

P
age 139



22

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Unadjusted audit differences

There are no unadjusted audit differences.  

Adjusted audit differences 

To assist the Standards and Audit Committee in fulfilling its governance responsibilities we present in the table below a summary of adjusted audit differences (including 
disclosures) identified during the course of our audit. The adjustments below have been included in the financial statements.

Presentational audit differences 

In addition to the adjusted audit difference noted above, our work identified presentational differences that the Authority has agreed to change.  

Appendix 3

Audit differences

Authority adjusted audit differences (£’000)

# Income and 
expenditure statement

Movement in 
reserves statement Assets Liabilities Reserves Comments 

1 - - - Dr Capital Grants 
Received in Advance

£1,544k

Cr Profit and loss 
reserve
£1,544k

We identified a misstatement in a consolidation 
adjustment posted by the Authority.  The adjustment is 
to align the recognition of grants made to Thamesway
Ltd with International Financial Reporting Standards 
requirements.  The value of grants made to Thameswey
was incorrectly taken from the draft Thameswey
accounts.  A value of £5,177,340 was used in the 
adjustment calculation.  The actual value of the grant 
from Thameswey audited accounts was £6,721,062, 
resulting in a difference of £1,543,722.

Dr £1,544k Cr £1,544k Total impact of corrected audit differences

P
age 140



23

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

This appendix communicates all significant facts and matters that bear on KPMG LLP’s independence and objectivity and informs you of the requirements of ISA 260 (UK and 
Ireland) Communication of Audit Matters to Those Charged with Governance.

Integrity, objectivity and independence

We are required to communicate to you in writing at least annually all significant facts and matters, including those related to the provision of non-audit services and the 
safeguards put in place that, in our professional judgement, may reasonably be thought to bear on KPMG LLP’s independence and the objectivity of the Engagement Lead and 
audit team.  We have considered the fees paid to us by the Authority for professional services provided by us during the reporting period. We are satisfied that our general 
procedures support our independence and objectivity.

General procedures to safeguard independence and objectivity

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent. As part of our ethics and independence policies all KPMG LLP audit partners and staff annually confirm 
their compliance with our Ethics and Independence Manual including in particular that they have no prohibited shareholdings.  Our Ethics and Independence Manual is fully 
consistent with the requirements of the Ethical Standards issued by the UK Auditing Practices Board. As a result we have underlying safeguards in place to maintain 
independence through: instilling professional values; communications; internal accountability; risk management; and independent reviews.  We would be happy to discuss any of 
these aspects of our procedures in more detail. There are no other matters that, in our professional judgement, bear on our independence which need to be disclosed.

Audit matters

We are required to comply with ISA (UK and Ireland) 260 Communication of Audit Matters to Those Charged with Governance when carrying out the audit.  ISA 260 requires 
that we consider the following audit matters and formally communicate them to those charged with governance:

• Relationships that may bear on the firm’s independence and the integrity and objectivity of the audit engagement lead and audit staff;

• The general approach and overall scope of the audit, including any expected limitations thereon, or any additional requirements;

• The selection of, or changes in, significant accounting policies and practices that have, or could have, a material effect on the Authority’s financial statements; 

• The potential effect on the accounts of any material risks and exposures, such as pending litigation, that are required to be disclosed in the financial statements; 

• Audit adjustments, whether or not recorded by the entity that have, or could have, a material effect on the Authority’s financial statements;

• Material uncertainties related to events and conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern;

• Disagreements with Management about matters that, individually or in aggregate, could be significant to the Authority’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. These 
communications include consideration of whether the matter has, or has not, been resolved and the significance of the matter; 

• Expected modifications to the auditor’s report;

Appendix 4

Audit independence

P
age 141



24

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

• Other matters warranting attention by those charged with governance, such as material weaknesses in internal control, questions regarding management integrity, and fraud 
involving management; and

• Any other matters agreed upon in the terms of the audit engagement.

We continue to discharge these responsibilities through our attendance at Standards and Audit Committees, commentary and reporting and, in the case of uncorrected 
misstatements, through our request for management representations.

Auditor declaration 

In relation to the audit of the financial statements of Woking Borough Council for the financial year ending 31 March 2017 we confirm that there were no relationships between 
KPMG LLP and Woking Borough Council, their directors and senior management and their affiliates that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the objectivity and 
independence of the audit engagement lead and audit staff. We confirm that we have complied with Ethical Standards and the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd 
requirements in relation to independence and objectivity.  We summarise below the non-audit services that we have provided, the fee, the potential threats to auditor 
independence and the associated safeguards in place.

We considered the ratio of audit to non-audit fees and as required by the APB Ethical Standards.  The principal threat which arises from fees from non-audit services which are 
large in absolute terms relative to the audit fee is the perception of self-interest and advocacy. In this regard, we do not consider that the above ratio creates such a self-interest 
or advocacy threat since the absolute level of non-audit fees is not significant to our firm as a whole and neither the audit partner nor members of the audit team are incentivised 
on, or rewarded in respect of, the provision of non-audit services to you. We believe that the question of perception is best addressed through appropriate disclosure as to use 
of the auditor for the provision of non-audit services in the Authority’s annual report and accounts.  

Appendix 4

Audit independence

Description of non audit services 2016-17 fees Potential threat to auditor independence Associated safeguards in place

High level tax awareness session delivered 
to Mole Valley District Council, with Woking 
Borough Council in attendance.  

£200 recharge to 
Woking of a £3,000 
fee for the course.

Self-Interest The tax awareness session was undertaken by a separate 
team from the audit team. There was no communication 
between teams.  

The fee for the session (of which only £200 was recharge 
to Woking) is a trifling percentage of our audit fee, so the 
self-interest threat is acceptably insignificant.  

Total fees £200

Total fees as a % of the external audit fees <1%

P
age 142



25

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Audit quality framework
Appendix 5

Audit quality is at the core of everything we do at KPMG and we believe that it is not just about reaching the right opinion, but how we reach that opinion.  To ensure that every 
partner and employee concentrates on the fundamental skills and behaviours required to deliver an appropriate and independent opinion, we have developed our global Audit 

Quality Framework

- Comprehensive effective monitoring processes
- Proactive identification of emerging risks and 

opportunities to improve quality and provide insights
- Obtain feedback from key stakeholders
- Evaluate and appropriately respond to feedback and 

findings Strateg
y

Interim 
fieldwor

k

Statutory 
reporting

Debrie
f

- Professional judgement and scepticism 
- Direction, supervision and review
- Ongoing mentoring and on the job coaching
- Critical assessment of audit evidence
- Appropriately supported and documented conclusions
- Relationships built on mutual respect
- Insightful, open and honest two way communications

- Technical training and support
- Accreditation and licensing 
- Access to specialist networks
- Consultation processes
- Business understanding and industry knowledge
- Capacity to deliver valued insights

- Select clients within risk tolerance
- Manage audit responses to risk
- Robust client and engagement acceptance and 

continuance processes
- Client portfolio management

- Recruitment, promotion, retention
- Development of core competencies, skills and 

personal qualities
- Recognition and reward for quality work
- Capacity and resource management 
- Assignment of team members and specialists 

- KPMG Audit and Risk Management Manuals
- Audit technology tools, templates and guidance
- Independence policies

Commitment to 
continuous 

improvement–

Association 
with the right 

clients

Clear standards 
and robust audit 

tools

Recruitment, 
development and 

assignment of 
appropriately 

qualified personnel

Commitment 
to technical 
excellence 

and quality service 
delivery

Performance of 
effective and 

efficient audits

P
age 143



Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights 
reserved.
The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

kpmg.com/socialmedia kpmg.com/app

P
age 144



APPENDIX 3 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Neil Hewitson 
KPMG LLP 
15 Canada Square 
London 
E14 5GL 

Civic Offices 
Gloucester Square 

Woking 
Surrey  GU21 6YL 

 
Telephone (01483) 755855 

Facsimile (01483) 768746 
DX 2931 WOKING 

Email wokbc@woking.gov.uk 
Website www.woking.gov.uk 

 

29 September 2017  
 
Dear Neil 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 
Woking Borough Council (“the Authority”), for the year ended 31 March 2017, for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion:  
 

i. as to whether these financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Authority and the Group as at 31 March 2017 and of the Authority’s and the Group’s 
expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

ii. whether the financial statements have been prepared properly in accordance with the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2016/17.  

These financial statements comprise the Authority and Group Movement in Reserves Statements, 
the Authority and Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements, the Authority and 
Group Balance Sheets, the Authority and Group Cash Flow Statements , the Housing Revenue 
Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement on the Housing Revenue Account 
Statement and the Collection Fund and the related notes. 
 
The Authority confirms that the representations it makes in this letter are in accordance with the 
definitions set out in the Appendix to this letter. 
 
The Authority confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as it 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing itself:  
 
Financial statements 
 
1. The Authority has fulfilled its responsibilities, as set out in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 

2015, for the preparation of financial statements that: 
 

i. give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority and the Group as at 31 
March 2017 and of the Authority’s and the Group’s expenditure and income for the year 
then ended; and 

Page 145

mailto:wokbc@woking.gov.uk


 
 
 

ii. have been prepared  properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
2. Measurement methods and significant assumptions used by the Authority in making accounting 

estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.  
 
3. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which IAS 10 Events after 

the reporting period requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 
 
All misstatements identified as part of the audit have been corrected. 
 
Information provided 
 
4. The Authority has provided you with: 
 

 access to all information of which it is aware, that is relevant to the preparation of the 
financial statements, such as records, documentation and other matters;  

 additional information that you have requested from the Authority for the purpose of the 
audit; and 

 unrestricted access to persons within the Authority and the Group from whom you 
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

 
5. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 

statements. 
 
6. The Authority confirms the following: 
 

i) The Authority has disclosed to you the results of its assessment of the risk that the 
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

 
Included in the Appendix to this letter are the definitions of fraud, including misstatements arising 
from fraudulent financial reporting and from misappropriation of assets. 

 
ii) The Authority has disclosed to you all information in relation to: 

 
a) Fraud or suspected fraud that it is aware of and that affects the Authority and the Group 

and involves:  

 management; 

 employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

 others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements; 
and 

b) allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Authority’s and Group’s financial 
statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or 
others. 

 
In respect of the above, the Authority acknowledges its responsibility for such internal control as 
it determines necessary for the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  In particular, the Authority acknowledges its 
responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and 
detect fraud and error.  

 
7. The Authority has disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-

compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the 
financial statements.  

 

Page 146



 
 
 

8. The Authority has disclosed to you and has appropriately accounted for and/or disclosed in the 
financial statements, in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets, all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered 
when preparing the financial statements.  

 
9. The Authority has disclosed to you the identity of the Authority’s and the Group’s related parties 

and all the related party relationships and transactions of which it is aware.  All related party 
relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. 

 
10. The Authority confirms that:  
 

a) The financial statements disclose all of the key risk factors, assumptions made and 
uncertainties surrounding the Authority’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern as required to provide a true and fair view. 

b) Any uncertainties disclosed are not considered to be material and therefore do not cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the Authority and the Group to continue as a going 
concern. 

 
 
11. On the basis of the process established by the Authority and having made appropriate enquiries, 

the Authority is satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of defined 
benefit obligations are consistent with its knowledge of the business and are in accordance with 
the requirements of IAS 19 (revised) Employee Benefits. 

 
The Authority further confirms that: 

 
a) all significant retirement benefits, including any arrangements that are: 

 statutory, contractual or implicit in the employer's actions; 

 arise in the UK and the Republic of Ireland or overseas; 

 funded or unfunded; and 

 approved or unapproved,  
 

have been identified and properly accounted for; and 
 
b) all plan amendments, curtailments and settlements have been identified and properly 

accounted for. 
 
 

This letter was tabled and agreed at the meeting of the Council on 28 September 2017. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
 
 
 
 

Leigh Clarke 
Finance Director 

 
For further information please contact Leigh Clarke on 01483 743277 (Direct Line) or  
Email Leigh.Clarke@woking.gov.uk 
EBC21B27 

  

Page 147



 
 
 

Appendix to the Authority Representation Letter of Woking Borough Council: Definitions 
 
Financial Statements 
 
A complete set of financial statements comprises: 
 

 A Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the period; 

 A Balance Sheet as at the end of the period; 

 A Movement in Reserves Statement for the period; 

 A Cash Flow Statement for the period; and 

 Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

A local authority is required to present group accounts in addition to its single entity accounts where 
required by chapter nine of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom 2016/17.  

 
A housing authority must present: 
 

 a HRA Income and Expenditure Statement; and 

 a Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement. 

A billing authority must present a Collection Fund Statement for the period showing amounts 
required by statute to be debited and credited to the Collection Fund.  
 
A penson fund administering authority must prepare Pension Fund accounts in accordance with 
Chapter 6.5 of the Code of Practice.  
 
An entity may use titles for the statements other than those used in IAS 1. For example, an entity 
may use the title 'statement of comprehensive income' instead of 'statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income'.  
 
Material Matters 
 
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. 
 
IAS 1.7 and IAS 8.5 state that: 
 

“Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or 
collectively, influence the economic decisions that users make on the basis of the financial 
statements.  Materiality depends on the size and nature of the omission or misstatement 
judged in the surrounding circumstances.  The size or nature of the item, or a combination of 
both, could be the determining factor.” 

 
 
Fraud 
 
Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts or 
disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users. 
 
Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets.  It is often accompanied by false 
or misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are missing or have 
been pledged without proper authorisation. Page 148



 
 
 

 
Error 
 
An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of an 
amount or a disclosure. 
 
Prior period errors are omissions from, and misstatements in, the entity’s financial statements for 
one or more prior periods arising from a failure to use, or misuse of, reliable information that: 
 

a) was available when financial statements for those periods were authorised for issue; and 
b) could reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account in the 

preparation and presentation of those financial statements. 
 
Such errors include the effects of mathematical mistakes, mistakes in applying accounting policies, 
oversights or misinterpretations of facts, and fraud. 
 
Management 
 
For the purposes of this letter, references to “management” should be read as “management and, 
where appropriate, those charged with governance”.   
 
Related Party and Related Party Transaction 
 
Related party: 
 
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial 
statements (referred to in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures as the “reporting entity”). 
 

a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that 
person: 

i. has control or joint control over the reporting entity;  
ii. has significant influence over the reporting entity; or  
iii. is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of 

the reporting entity. 
b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies: 

i. The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that 
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others). 

ii. One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint 
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member). 

iii. Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. 
iv. One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the 

third entity. 
v. The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the 

reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity.  If the reporting entity is itself 
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity. 

vi. The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a). 
vii. A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of 

the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). 
 
Key management personnel in a local authority context are all chief officers (or equivalent), elected 
members, the chief executive of the authority and other persons having the authority and 
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the authority, including the 
oversight of these activities. 
 
A reporting entity is exempt from the disclosure requirements of IAS 24.18 in relation to related party 
transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, with: 
 

a) a government that has control, joint control or significant influence over the reporting entity; 
and 

Page 149



 
 
 

b) another entity that is a related party because the same government has control, joint control 
or significant influence over both the reporting entity and the other entity. 

 
 
Related party transaction: 
 
A transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party, 
regardless of whether a price is charged. 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 150



 

WBC17-029 
1 

Agenda Item No. 8 
 
COUNCIL - 28 SEPTEMBER 2017 

ELECTORAL INTEGRITY PILOTS 2018 - ID PROPOSALS 

Summary 

The Council, at its meeting on 20 July 2017, agreed to support the inclusion of Woking in the 
Government’s ID pilot scheme for the 2018 elections, subject to confirmation of, and the 
Council’s agreement to, the final proposals for the ID required to be produced in the polling 
station by electors. 

Working with the Cabinet Office, Officers have developed a scheme and this report sets out 
details of the proposed ID requirements.  It is proposed to have a photographic ID scheme with 
the provision for a locally produced electoral card, similar to the scheme currently operational in 
Northern Ireland. 

The Council is asked to support the proposals to enable the Cabinet Office to draft the 
legislation required for Woking Borough Council to participate in the pilot.  If the Council agrees 
the proposed approach, this will enable to the Statutory Instrument to be created and laid before 
Parliament to authorise the pilot to proceed. 

Reasons for Decision 

To confirm Woking’s participation in the ID pilot scheme and enable the Statutory Instrument for 
the Electoral Integrity ID Pilot in 2018 to be created. 

Recommendations 

The Council is requested to: 

RESOLVE That the Council agrees to be part of the 2018 Integrity Pilots subject to the ID 
requirements for electors being one of the following forms of photographic ID: 

 UK Passport 

 EU Passport 

 Commonwealth Passport 

 UK Photo Driving Licence 

 EU Photo Driving Licence 

 Older Person’s Bus Pass 

 Woking Electoral Card 
 

The Council has authority to determine the recommendation above. 

 

Background Papers: 

Cabinet Office - Electoral Integrity Pilots - Prospectus 
Sustainability Impact Assessment 
Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
Reporting Person: 

Ray Morgan, Chief Executive 
Ext. 3333, E Mail: Ray.Morgan@woking.gov.uk 

Page 151

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/601133/Electoral_Integrity_Pilots_-_Prospectus.pdf


Electoral Integrity Pilots 2018 - ID Proposals 

2 

 
Contact Person: 

Charlotte Griffiths, Electoral Services Manager 
Ext. 3215, E Mail: Charlotte.Griffiths@woking.gov.uk 
 
Portfolio Holder: 

Cllr David Bittleston 
E Mail: CllrDavid.Bittleston@woking.gov.uk 
 
Shadow Portfolio Holder: 

Cllr Ann-Marie Barker 
E Mail: cllrann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk 
 
Date Published: 

20 September 2017 

Page 152



Electoral Integrity Pilots 2018 - ID Proposals 

3 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Following the publication of Sir Eric Pickles’ report ‘Securing the Ballot’ in 2016, the 
Government announced that it would look to trial measures to mitigate the risks identified 
by Sir Eric Pickles to the integrity of the electoral process. 

1.2 In March 2017, the Cabinet Office published a prospectus for Electoral Integrity Pilots, 
which would test methods to reduce the risk of electoral fraud.  The pilots will trial options 
for requiring electors to present proof of identity in order to cast their ballot in polling 
stations at the local elections in May 2018. 

1.3 The objectives of the pilot scheme are to ensure that: 

 the proposed ‘ID at polling stations’ policy measures are proportional to the policy 
objective of reducing the opportunity for electoral fraud 

 the proposed ‘ID at polling stations’ policy measures enhance public confidence in the 
security of the polling station. 

1.4 Woking is still listed by the Electoral Commission as being ‘at risk of electoral fraud’, and 
given the history of allegations and instances of electoral fraud in the Borough, Officers 
expressed an interest in being included in the pilot. 

1.5 The Council, at its meeting on 20 July 2017, agreed to support an application to 
participate in the scheme, subject to confirmation of, and the Council’s agreement to, the 
final proposals for the ID required to be produced in the polling station by electors. 

2.0 Pilot Scheme Requirements 

2.1 All electors voting in person at a polling station or acting as a proxy for another elector will 
be required to provide ID before being issued with a ballot paper.  If no ID can be 
presented, the electors will be refused a ballot paper and be unable to vote. 

2.2 In discussion with the Cabinet Office, it is proposed that only photographic ID will be 
accepted at the polling station.  The types of ID required will be similar to those used in 
Northern Ireland, where electors have been required to provide photographic ID since 
2003. 

2.3 Requiring electors to produce photographic ID will simplify the range of documents an 
elector can provide, reducing confusion on the part of electors as to what document is to 
be brought to the polling station.  Additionally, it will also reduce the time taken to 
authenticate different ID by polling station, thereby reducing the potential for significant 
delays at polling stations.   

2.4 Consideration has been given to the range of photographic ID to be accepted, balancing 
the availability of a type of ID with the level of confidence in the type of ID to be provided.  
Consideration was also given to those electors who do not have photographic ID.  To this 
end, it is proposed to introduce a local electoral card, for which electors would need to 
apply prior to the election. 

2.5 The full list of proposed acceptable ID is set out below: 

ID Type Comments 

UK Passport Need not be current, as long as there is sufficient 
likeness between the photo and the elector. 

EU Passport  

Commonwealth Passport  

Page 153



Electoral Integrity Pilots 2018 - ID Proposals 

4 

UK Photo Driving Licence  

EU Photo Driving Licence  

Older Person’s Bus Pass  

Local Electoral Card To be issued by the Returning Officer. 
 

2.6 The aim of the photographic ID is to establish whether there was sufficient likeness 
between the holder of the ID and the photograph on the ID.  ID provided at the polling 
station can be out of date, or state the elector’s previous address, provided that there is 
still a sufficient likeness between the photo and the voter. 

2.7 In cases where the ID provided is out of date, the elector will still be issued with their ballot 
paper.  Polling station staff will be asked to record this information for the Electoral 
Services team to follow up after the election. 

2.8 All electors voting in person at a polling station or acting as a proxy for another elector will 
be required to provide ID before being issued with a ballot paper.  If no ID can be 
presented, the electors will be refused a ballot paper and be unable to vote. 

3.0 Local Electoral Card 

3.1 Any elector who does not have the necessary ID will be able to apply for the local electoral 
card.  Based on the 2011 census, it is estimated that around 10% of Woking residents do 
not have passports.  (Figures relating to photo driver’s licence are not yet available).  This 
could potentially equate to around 7,500 electors not being able to provide photo ID, if 
they do not have a photo driver’s licence or an older person’s bus pass.   

3.2 At this stage, the final requirements for the electoral card are being finalised.  However, 
the proposed approach is set out below: 

Application process 

3.3 Electors will need to complete an application form, which sets out what supporting 
evidence will be required, prior to being issued with the electoral card.  The supporting 
evidence required will match the evidence required for supporting registration applications: 

Provide evidence from one or more of the following groups 
 

Type One Evidence 

 Biometric residence permit  

 Northern Ireland Electoral Identity Card 
 

Provide ONE of these documents 
 
or: 

Type Two Evidence 

 UK Paper driving licence 

 Non EU photo driving licence 

 Birth certificate 

 Marriage/Civil partnership certificate 

 Adoption certificate 

 Firearms licence 

 Police bail sheet 
 
 

Provide THREE of these 

documents  

AND 

ONE from Evidence Type 3 

 
If electors can only provide one of 

these documents they will also 

have to provide TWO Evidence 

Type 3 documents 

 

Or: 

Page 154



Electoral Integrity Pilots 2018 - ID Proposals 

5 

 
Type 3 Evidence 

 Mortgage statement, not more than 12 
months old 

 Bank/Building society statement, not more 
than 3 months old 

 Bank/Building society account opening 
letter, not more than 3 months old 

 Credit card statement, not more than 3 
months old 

 Financial statement, for example pension or 
endowment, not more than 12 months old 

 Council tax statement, not more than 12 
months old 

 Utility bill, not more than 3 months old 

 P45 or P60 statement, not more than 12 
months old 

 Benefit statement , for example child benefit 
or pension, not more than 3 months old 

 Entitlement document from central/local 
government, government agency or local 
council, for example from DWP, Job Centre 
Plus, HMRC, not more than 3 months old 

 

Provide FOUR of these documents 

OR complete the Attestation of 

Identity 

 

3.4 Options for producing the electoral card are being investigated.  It is likely that a similar 
approach to that used by the Taxi Licensing team for producing taxi driver licences will be 
adopted. This will enable electoral cards to be issued by post if electors are unable to 
attend the Civic Offices to be issued with a card, as long as the elector provides an 
attested photo with the application. 

3.5 Electors will still be able to submit applications in person, but the facility to apply by post 
will make the process more accessible. 

3.6 There will be no charge for the initial card or for a replacement card.  However, this policy 
will be reviewed, in consultation with the Elections and Electoral Registration Review 
Panel, if there are a significant number of cases where excessive replacements are 
required.  If changes to this policy are proposed, Council approval will be sought. 

Deadline for applications 

3.7 As in Northern Ireland, it is proposed that there will be a deadline for applying for an 
electoral card.  It is proposed that this will not be a statutory deadline, to enable the 
Returning Officer discretion to issue cards, if necessary, after this date.  This is in line with 
the provisions in place in Northern Ireland, where the deadline is set two weeks before an 
election for the electoral card to be guaranteed. 

4.0 Polling Station Process 

4.1 Electors will provide their ID when they confirm their name and address on the register.  It 
will not be a separate stage in the voting process; however an additional polling station 
staff member may be required to assist with the checking of the ID.  As such, a bank of 
reserve staff will be maintained for polling day which can be deployed to polling stations if 
needed.   

Page 155



Electoral Integrity Pilots 2018 - ID Proposals 

6 

4.2 Notices will be placed at the entrance to the polling station to remind electors to have their 
ID ready.  If electors come without proper ID, they will be able to leave and return with the 
required ID before polls close. 

5.0 Publicity 

5.1 Officers are working with the Cabinet Office to plan a co-ordinated publicity campaign, 
which will start in the autumn of 2017.  This will also be linked to the impact assessment to 
identify groups for targeted publicity. 

5.2 The existing electoral publicity will be adapted to promote the ID required: 

Publication Comments 

Confirmation Letters for 
new electors 

When new electors are added to the register, the 
confirmation letter will set out the ID requirements and 
information about the electoral card. 

Household Notification 
Letter and Elections Leaflet 

This will be amended from a household letter to an 
individual letter to each elector.  Accompanying the letter 
will be an amended elections leaflet, which will include 
details of the ID requirements and process for getting an 
electoral card if necessary. 

Council Tax Billing A flier regarding the ID requirements and process for 
getting an electoral card will be included 

Woking Magazine March 2017 – detailing the ID requirements and process 
for getting an electoral card if necessary. 

Poll Cards These will be amended to detail the ID requirements and 
the process for getting an electoral card if necessary. 

5.3 It must be noted that this list is not complete and does not include additional targeted 
work.   

6.0 Implications 

Financial 

6.1 There will be additional costs for administering the electoral card, as well as additional 
polling station staff costs.  Confirmation from the Cabinet Office is still awaited regarding 
funding for these costs. 

 Human Resource/Training and Development 

6.2 Polling Station staff would require additional training when the ID requirements are 
finalised. 

 Community Safety 

6.3 There are no community safety implications arising from this report. 

 

Page 156



Electoral Integrity Pilots 2018 - ID Proposals 

7 

Risk Management 

6.4 If the Council is part of the pilot programme, there is a risk that groups of electors may be 
disenfranchised if they will not provide proof of identity at the polling stations.   

6.5 The impact assessment will identify groups who may be at risk of not being able to provide 
the required ID in a polling station, to enable communications and publicity to be targeted 
at these groups.  This will ensure, as far as possible, that all electors have the ability to 
obtain the necessary ID. 

 Sustainability 

6.6 As stated above, some electors may not currently have proof of identity.  Using an 
electoral card that is verified on the same basis as electoral registration applications will 
enable electors to obtain appropriate ID and avoid them being disenfranchised.  

 Equalities  

6.7 Work will need to be carried out to identify potential groups of electors who may be at risk 
of not being able to provide the required ID in a polling station, to ensure the alternative 
options are feasible, whilst ensuring the integrity of the pilot scheme. 

7.0 Consultations 

7.1 The Portfolio Holder has been consulted on the proposals.  The Elections and Electoral 
Registration Review Panel are being consulted on these proposals and any 
representations will be tabled at the Council meeting. 

 
REPORT ENDS 
 
 

 

 
 

Page 157



 

 
8 

Equality Impact Assessment 

 
The purpose of this assessment is to improve the work of the Council by making sure that it does not discriminate against any individual or 
group and that, where possible, it promotes equality. The Council has a legal duty to comply with equalities legislation and this template 
enables you to consider the impact (positive or negative) a strategy, policy, project or service may have upon the protected groups.  

 

 

Positive impact? 

Negative 
impact? 

 
 
 

No 
specific 
impact 

What will the impact be? If the impact is negative how can 
it be mitigated? (action) 

THIS SECTION NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED AS EVIDENCE 
OF WHAT THE POSITIVE IMPACT IS OR WHAT ACTIONS 

ARE BEING TAKEN TO MITIGATE ANY NEGATIVE 
IMPACTS 

E
lim

in
a
te

 

d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 

G
o
o
d
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
 

Gender 
Men     X  

Women     X  

Gender Reassignment     X  

Race 

White     X  

Mixed/Multiple ethnic groups      X  

Asian/Asian British     X  

Black/African/Caribbean/ 
Black British 

    X  

Gypsies / travellers     X  

Other ethnic group     X  

 

P
age 158



 

9 

 

 

Positive impact? 

Negative 
impact? 

 
 
 

No 
specific 
impact 

What will the impact be? If the impact is negative how can 
it be mitigated? (action) 

THIS SECTION NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED AS EVIDENCE 
OF WHAT THE POSITIVE IMPACT IS OR WHAT ACTIONS 

ARE BEING TAKEN TO MITIGATE ANY NEGATIVE 
IMPACTS 

E
lim

in
a
te

 

d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 

G
o
o
d
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
 

Disability 

Physical     X  

Sensory     X  

Learning Difficulties     X  

Mental Health     X  

Sexual 
Orientation 

Lesbian, gay men, bisexual     X  

Age 
Older people (50+)     X  

Younger people (16 - 25)     X  

Religion or 
Belief  

Faith Groups     X  

Pregnancy & maternity   X  

Marriage & Civil Partnership   X  

Socio-economic Background   

 Some electors may not be able to provide proof of 
identity.  Work will be carried out to identify these groups 
and find solutions to ensure that they are not 
disenfranchised 

 

P
age 159



 

10 

The purpose of the Equality Impact Assessment is to improve the work of the Council by making sure it does not discriminate against any 
individual or group and that, where possible, it promotes equality. The assessment is quick and straightforward to undertake but it is an 
important step to make sure that individuals and teams think carefully about the likely impact of their work on people in Woking and take action 
to improve strategies, policies, services and projects, where appropriate.  Further details and guidance on completing the form are available. 

P
age 160

file://///wbc-fp-1/corp$/Shikari%20Supporting%20Documents/Impact%20Assessments/Master/Equality%20Impact%20Assessment%20Guidance.doc


 

11 

Sustainability Impact Assessment 
 
Officers preparing a committee report are required to complete a Sustainability Impact Assessment.  Sustainability is one of the Council’s 
‘cross-cutting themes’ and the Council has made a corporate commitment to address the social, economic and environmental effects of 
activities across Business Units. The purpose of this Impact Assessment is to record any positive or negative impacts this decision, project or 
programme is likely to have on each of the Council’s Sustainability Themes.  For assistance with completing the Impact Assessment, please 
refer to the instructions below.  Further details and guidance on completing the form are available. 
 
 

Theme (Potential impacts of the project) 
Positive 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

No specific 
impact 

What will the impact be?  If the impact is 
negative, how can it be mitigated? (action) 

Use of energy, water, minerals and materials   X  

Waste generation / sustainable waste management   X  

Pollution to air, land and water   X  

Factors that contribute to Climate Change   X  

Protection of and access to the natural environment   X  

Travel choices that do not rely on the car   X  

A strong, diverse and sustainable local economy   X  

Meet local needs locally   X  

Opportunities for education and information   X  

Provision of appropriate and sustainable housing   X  

Personal safety and reduced fear of crime   X  

Equality in health and good health   X  

Access to cultural and leisure facilities   X  

Social inclusion / engage and consult communities   X  

Equal opportunities for the whole community    

Some electors may not be able to provide 
proof of identity.  Work will be carried out to 
identify these groups and find solutions to 
ensure that they are not disenfranchised. 

Contribute to Woking’s pride of place   X  

P
age 161

file://///wbc-fp-1/corp$/Shikari%20Supporting%20Documents/Sustainability%20Impact%20Assessments/Master/Sustainability%20Impact%20Assessment%20Guidance.doc


 

12 

 
 

P
age 162



 

WBC17-027 
1 

Agenda Item No. 9 
 
COUNCIL - 28 SEPTEMBER 2017 

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE 

Summary 

The Council is invited to consider the recommendations from the meeting of the Executive held 
on 14 September 2017 and determine accordingly.  The recommendations as set out in the 
draft minutes of the Executive are set out below.  An item on Recommendations of the 
Executive has been included under Part II of this agenda to enable Members to discuss the 
details of the proposal. 

EXECUTIVE – 14 SEPTEMBER 2017 

1. LAND MANAGEMENT - ACQUISITION OF WOKING TOWN CENTRE PROPERTY 

RECOMMENDED to Council 

That the recommendations set out in the Part II report be agreed. 

Reason: To acquire and improve the setting of an important asset in 
Woking Town Centre to support the economic vibrancy of the 
town centre and to contribute to a key objective in the Council's 
Medium Term Financial Strategy to protect services for Woking 
residents. 

Background Papers: 

None. 
 
Reporting Person: 

Ray Morgan, Chief Executive 
Ext. 3333, E Mail: Ray.Morgan@woking.gov.uk 
 
Contact Person: 

Frank Jeffrey, Democratic Services Manager 
Ext. 3012, E Mail: Frank.Jeffrey@woking.gov.uk 
 
Portfolio Holders: 

Cllr Ayesha Azad 
E Mail: cllrayesha.azad@woking.gov.uk 
 
Date Published: 

20 September 2017 
 

REPORT ENDS 
 
 

Page 163

Agenda Item 9



 

 
2 

Equality Impact Assessment 

 
The purpose of this assessment is to improve the work of the Council by making sure that it does not discriminate against any individual or 
group and that, where possible, it promotes equality. The Council has a legal duty to comply with equalities legislation and this template 
enables you to consider the impact (positive or negative) a strategy, policy, project or service may have upon the protected groups.  

 

 

Positive impact? 

Negative 
impact? 

 
 
 

No 
specific 
impact 

What will the impact be? If the impact is negative how can 
it be mitigated? (action) 

THIS SECTION NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED AS EVIDENCE 
OF WHAT THE POSITIVE IMPACT IS OR WHAT ACTIONS 

ARE BEING TAKEN TO MITIGATE ANY NEGATIVE 
IMPACTS 

E
lim

in
a
te

 

d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 

G
o
o
d
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
 

Gender 
Men      Any implications arising from the proposals have been 

identified in the reports considered by the Executive 
Women      

Gender Reassignment      

Race 

White      

 

Mixed/Multiple ethnic groups       

Asian/Asian British      

Black/African/Caribbean/ 
Black British 

     

Gypsies / travellers      

Other ethnic group      

 

P
age 164



 

3 

 

 

Positive impact? 

Negative 
impact? 

 
 
 

No 
specific 
impact 

What will the impact be? If the impact is negative how can 
it be mitigated? (action) 

THIS SECTION NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED AS EVIDENCE 
OF WHAT THE POSITIVE IMPACT IS OR WHAT ACTIONS 

ARE BEING TAKEN TO MITIGATE ANY NEGATIVE 
IMPACTS 

E
lim

in
a
te

 

d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 

G
o
o
d
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
 

Disability 

Physical      

Any implications arising from the proposals have been 
identified in the reports considered by the Executive 

Sensory      

Learning Difficulties      

Mental Health      

Sexual 
Orientation 

Lesbian, gay men, bisexual      

Age 
Older people (50+)      

Younger people (16 - 25)      

Religion or 
Belief  

Faith Groups      

Pregnancy & maternity    

 Marriage & Civil Partnership    

Socio-economic Background    

 
The purpose of the Equality Impact Assessment is to improve the work of the Council by making sure it does not discriminate against any 
individual or group and that, where possible, it promotes equality. The assessment is quick and straightforward to undertake but it is an 
important step to make sure that individuals and teams think carefully about the likely impact of their work on people in Woking and take action 
to improve strategies, policies, services and projects, where appropriate.  Further details and guidance on completing the form are available. 

P
age 165

file://///wbc-fp-1/corp$/Shikari%20Supporting%20Documents/Impact%20Assessments/Master/Equality%20Impact%20Assessment%20Guidance.doc


 

4 

Sustainability Impact Assessment 
 
Officers preparing a committee report are required to complete a Sustainability Impact Assessment.  Sustainability is one of the Council’s 
‘cross-cutting themes’ and the Council has made a corporate commitment to address the social, economic and environmental effects of 
activities across Business Units. The purpose of this Impact Assessment is to record any positive or negative impacts this decision, project or 
programme is likely to have on each of the Council’s Sustainability Themes.  For assistance with completing the Impact Assessment, please 
refer to the instructions below.  Further details and guidance on completing the form are available. 
 
 

Theme (Potential impacts of the project) 
Positive 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

No specific 
impact 

What will the impact be?  If the impact is 
negative, how can it be mitigated? (action) 

Use of energy, water, minerals and materials    

Any implications arising from the proposals 
have been identified in the reports considered 
by the Executive 

Waste generation / sustainable waste management    

Pollution to air, land and water    

Factors that contribute to Climate Change    

Protection of and access to the natural environment    

Travel choices that do not rely on the car    

A strong, diverse and sustainable local economy    

Meet local needs locally    

Opportunities for education and information    

Provision of appropriate and sustainable housing    

Personal safety and reduced fear of crime    

Equality in health and good health    

Access to cultural and leisure facilities    

Social inclusion / engage and consult communities    

Equal opportunities for the whole community    

Contribute to Woking’s pride of place    

 

P
age 166

file://///wbc-fp-1/corp$/Shikari%20Supporting%20Documents/Sustainability%20Impact%20Assessments/Master/Sustainability%20Impact%20Assessment%20Guidance.doc

	Agenda
	7 Statement of Accounts 2016-17
	7a Statement of Accounts 2016-17 Appendix 1
	7b Statement of Accounts 2017-17 Appendix 2
	7c Statement of Accounts 2017-17 Appendix 3

	8 Electoral Integrity Pilots 2018 - ID Proposals
	9 Recommendations of the Executive

